
TO:  James L. App, City Manager 

FROM:  Doug Monn, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Appeal of Conditional Well Permit Decision, Eberle 

DATE: August 19, 2014 

 

NEEDS: That the City Council consider an appeal filed by Filipponi & Thompson Drilling, 
Inc., on behalf of the Eberle Winery, regarding the City’s decision to apply conditions 
of approval under City Ordinance No. 1002 N.S. on a well permit application 
pertaining to 3830 Highway 46 East (Assessor Parcel No. 025-436-039). 

FACTS:  
1. On February 4, 2014, the City Council adopted City Ordinance No. 1000 N.S., an 

interim urgency ordinance which temporarily prohibited the construction of new 
wells; or the modification, rehabilitation, or reconstruction of existing wells that 
would increase the amount of groundwater capable of being extracted from the 
North County (a.k.a. Paso Robles) Groundwater Basin. 
 

2. On March 4, 2014, the City Council adopted City Ordinance No. 1002 N.S. which 
extends the same prohibitions of Ordinance No. 1000 N.S. until February 5, 2016.    

3. On March 6, 2014, Filipponi & Thompson Drilling, Inc. filed a permit application 
with the City to drill a well at the Eberle Winery at 3830 Highway 46E.  The 
application proposed an “irrigation replacement” well with a depth of 1,000 feet, 
an estimated pumping rate of 500 gallons per minute (gpm) and an estimated 
maximum use of 100,000 +/- gallons per day (gpd). 

4. Subsequent to the March 6 permit application, City staff met with Mr. Gary 
Eberle and Mr. Doug Filipponi, discussed the City ordinances referenced above 
and outlined potential options.  Among other matters, staff explained that the 
proposed new replacement well could be processed as a 
rehabilitation/reconstruction well provided that the existing well was capped and 
the new well would not increase the amount of groundwater capable of being 
extracted from the Basin. 

5. On April 22, 2014, Mr. Filipponi re-submitted the well permit application 
proposing an agricultural replacement well with a depth of 1,000 feet, an 
estimated maximum pumping rate of 600 gpm (up from 500 gpm from the 
original application), and an estimated maximum use of 600 gpd (sic).  (While the 
600 gpd is clearly a mistake, staff estimates the maximum daily used could exceed 
120,000+/- gpd)   Along with the re-submitted application, Mr. Filipponi 
provided a letter claiming that the existing well “is currently pumping at 
approximately 600 gpm.”   
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6. City staff determined that the potential issuance of a well permit would need to 
be conditioned on terms reasonably necessary to comply with the City Ordinance 
and relayed those conditions to Mr. Filipponi by email. 

7. In subsequent discussions, Mr. Filipponi informed City staff that the existing well 
proposed for abandonment has an 8-inch casing and that the applicant proposes a 
10-inch casing for the new well. 

8. On July 15, 2014, the City sent a letter to Mr. Eberle and Mr. Filipponi advising 
that a well permit for a rehabilitation/reconstruction well could be processed if 
there was a formal agreement with the City that included certain conditions of 
approval as necessary and reasonable to comply with City Ordinance No. 1002 
N.S.  Among those conditions was that the replacement well must have the same 
or smaller casing size than that of the well to be abandoned. 

9. By letter dated July 24, 2014, Mr. Filipponi requested an appeal hearing before 
the City Council claiming that the City should issue a well permit without any 
conditions. 

ANALYSIS &  

CONCLUSION:  There are two wells currently operating on the Eberle property.  In the well permit 
application materials submitted to the City and in related correspondence from Mr. 
Filipponi, the two wells are referred to as the “winery well” and the “vineyard well.”  
Mr. Filipponi indicates it is the winery well that is being replaced, however both 
applications indicate that the “replacement well” will be located near the vineyard 
well, which is approximately 1,400 feet west of the winery well. 

In reviewing the application materials, City staff determined that any issuance of a 
well permit must be conditioned on terms both reasonable and necessary to comply 
with the City Ordinance.  In particular, the City is prohibited from approving the 
proposed replacement well if it would “increase the amount of groundwater capable 
of being extracted from the Paso Robles Groundwater Basin.”  Accordingly, City staff 
communicated several conditions that would be applied to permitting this 
application, as follows: 

• The replacement well must have the same casing size (or smaller) as the well 
being abandoned. 

• Construction details regarding the well being replaced must be provided, 
along with pumping records as available. 

• The replaced well must be destroyed and abandoned in accordance with a 
permit obtained through the County Health Department 

• The City must be allowed to monitor water levels and pumping from the 
new well. 

The applicant contends that a larger 10-inch casing is needed to accept the pumping 
equipment from the existing vineyard well in case that becomes necessary in the 
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future.  However, the language of the City Ordinance is clear that the City is not 
authorized to process, issue or approve any permit that would increase the amount of 
groundwater capable of being extracted from the Basin.  A 10-inch casing would 
essentially double the capability of groundwater pumping from the “winery well.”   

This is not to state the Eberle Winery has such an intention; however, the City must 
objectively carry out the requirements of the City Ordinance according to its terms. 

In his appeal, Mr. Filipponi contends that City staff’s decision should be reversed and 
the well permit should be approved “under the old rules” because this entire matter is 
the result of a simple clerical mistake.  Mr. Filipponi admits that his company erred 
by originally seeking a well permit from the County of San Luis Obispo, even though 
the Eberle Winery is entirely within City limits.  He also points to the permit that 
was inadvertently issued by the County as justification for the issuance of a City 
permit.  Mr. Filipponi claims that if he had applied to the City for a permit in August 
2013, the City “would have had no reasons not to approve the permit” and there 
would have been “no problems” obtaining the permit.  However, these statements 
deserve some additional context. 

• On August 6, 2013, the County Board of Supervisors held a public hearing 
regarding stressed conditions of the Paso Robles Groundwater Basin, and the 
possibility of adopting a moratorium on new or expanded irrigated crop 
production and other land uses dependent on groundwater in the 
unincorporated areas.  Very soon thereafter, the County published a draft 
urgency ordinance that would establish such a moratorium, and proposed to 
conduct a hearing on the matter on August 27, 2013. 

• On August 15, 2013, Filipponi & Thompson filed a well permit application 
with the County Health Department to drill a new 10-inch irrigation well on 
the Eberle property. 

• On August 26, 2013, the County Health Department approved that 
application. However that approval had no effect because the Eberle property 
and wells are entirely within the City’s boundaries. 

• On August 27, 2013, the County Board of Supervisors adopted the 
moratorium under County Urgency Ordinance No. 3246. 

• On February 4, 2014 and on March 4, 2014, respectively, the City Council 
adopted City Ordinances 1000 N.S. and 1002 N.S., imposing a moratorium on 
the issuance or approval of new groundwater wells within the City’s limits to 
address a current and immediate threat to the public health, safety and 
welfare of the City and its residents. 

These events indicate that the application was rushed to obtain a drilling permit in 
August 2013 before the County imposed groundwater pumping restrictions.  
However, it was filed with the wrong entity.  Meanwhile, the City Council has 
adopted City Ordinances 1000 N.S. and 1002 N.S. that flatly prohibit the City from 
approving a larger irrigation well on the Eberle property as proposed.  Nevertheless, 
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Mr. Filipponi’s appeal asks the City Council to disregard those legal requirements, to 
treat his application to the County as if it had been filed with the City and to obtain a 
drilling permit “under the old rules” as if the City Ordinances did not exist.  He 
believes that no conditions should be placed on the replacement well. 

As noted above, the City Department of Public Works has determined that a well 
permit for a rehabilitation/reconstruction well on the Eberle property could be 
processed if there was a formal agreement with the City that included all of the 
conditions of approval outlined in the City’s July 15, 2014 letter, which are both 
reasonable and necessary to comply with the requirements of City Ordinance No. 
1002 N.S. 

For these reasons, denial of the appeal is the appropriate action in order to comply 
with the City Ordinances.  However the applicant could be advised that the City is 
willing to process a well permit under the conditions stated herein, which would 
assure the public that the City is fulfilling its commitment to be a responsible steward 
of the Groundwater Basin. 

If, however, the Council wishes to grant the appeal, the City Ordinance must first be 
modified in a manner that would alter the requirements for the issuance of new well 
permits.  Any such modification could likely result in the City receiving many other 
new applications for well permits (thus undermining the purpose of the Ordinance, 
e.g., to prohibit increasing the amount of groundwater capable of being extracted 
from the North County (a.k.a. Paso Robles) Groundwater Basin). 

POLICY  
REFERENCE: City Ordinance No. 1002 N.S. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None.  

OPTIONS:  a. Deny the appeal requested by Filipponi & Thompson Drilling, Inc. on behalf of 
Gary Eberle and/or Eberle Winery and, in accordance with City Ordinance No. 1002 
N.S., deny the well permit as proposed by the applicant for the Eberle property 
located at 3830 Highway 46 East. 

b. Amend, modify or reject the above options. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Letter from Mr. Filipponi to the City dated 7-24-14 
2. Letter from the City Engineer to Mr. Eberle and Mr. Filipponi dated 7-15-14 
3. Well Permit application 4-22-14 
4. Well Permit application 3-6-14 
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